

Additional resources for “Bounty Land: It’s Complicated”

George W. Knepper, *The Official Ohio Lands Book* (Columbus: The Auditor of State, 2002). <https://www.ohioauditor.gov/publications/OhioLandsBook.pdf>

*Atlas of the Historical Geography of the United States, Military Reserves, 1778-1816, With Dates of Creation* (Plate 45b, digitized by University of Richmond)

Ohio Company Records

Marietta College Library <https://library.marietta.edu/home>

Ohio Historical Society Library

<http://catalog.ohiohistory.org/Presto/home/home.aspx>

Symmes Purchase Records

*Symmes Purchase Records*, Chris McDenry, transcriber (Lawrenceburg, IN: C. McHenry, 1979).

Cincinnati Historical Society <http://library.cincymuseum.org/catalog/library-catalog.htm>

Fold3 <https://www.fold3.com/>

Revolutionary War Pensions

War of 1812 Pension Files (FREE)

War of 1812 Pension Application Files Index (FREE)

Bounty Land Warrant Applications Index (FREE)

Bureau of Land Management, General Land Office <https://glorerecords.blm.gov/>

Library of Virginia <https://www.lva.virginia.gov/>

Kentucky Department for Libraries and Archives

<https://kdla.ky.gov/Pages/default.aspx>

National Archives <https://www.archives.gov/research/catalog>

Forms <https://www.archives.gov/forms>

Georgia State Archives <https://www.georgiaarchives.org/>

Maryland State Archives <https://msa.maryland.gov/>

Maine State Archives <https://www.maine.gov/sos/arc/>

Massachusetts State Archives <https://www.sec.state.ma.us/arc/>

New York State Archives <http://www.archives.nysed.gov/>

North Carolina State Archives <https://archives.ncdcr.gov/>

Tennessee State Archives <https://sos.tn.gov/tsla>

Pennsylvania Archives <https://www.phmc.pa.gov/Archives/Pages/default.aspx>

South Carolina State Archives <https://scdah.sc.gov/>